Planning Commission of Peachtree City
Meeting Minutes
Monday, February 9, 2026
6:30 PM
Call to Order

The Peachtree City Planning Commission met at City Hall on Monday, February 9,
2026. Chairman Scott Ritenour called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. Vice-Chairman
Andrew Kriz, Commissioners Hans Gant, Jack Allen, Robert Halverson, and Alternate
Kenneth Hamner were present. Also in attendance were Planning and Development
Director Shayla Reed, Senior Planner Lora Hooks, Recording Secretary Martha
Barksdale, and IT Specialists Ken Couch and Ryan Williams.

Pledge of Allegiance

Announcements
None

Presentations
None

Agenda Changes
None

Minutes

1. Planning Commission Meeting January 26, 2026

Allen moved to approve the January 26, 2026 Planning Commission meeting
minutes as submitted. Gant seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

Old Agenda Items
None

New Agenda Items
None
Public Hearings

1. Consider a Text Amendment to the Lighting Ordinance, specifically Sec.
731.2 of the Land Development Ordinance

Ritenour repeated the public hearing protocol.

Reed recalled the in-depth conversation they had at the last meeting, particularly
about the uniformity in the color temperature of the lights. She said she had gotten
some expert assistance to make sure the language was correct and that all the
Commissioners’ suggestions had been incorporated.

Ritenour opened the public hearing. Mr. Keith Larson said he was in favor of
having a uniform color temperature for all lighting on one site. Good lighting was
important for safety, and this change was needed to catch up with modern
technology. No one else wished to speak, and Ritenour closed the hearing.



Kriz asked Halverson, who had knowledge of lighting, if he was pleased with the
final sentence in the amended section, “all exterior lighting on a site shall maintain
a consistent color temperature.” He said he was.

Gant asked if this applied only to commercial properties. Reed said it applied to
commercial and industrial.

All the Commissioners said they approved of the changes. Ritenour said he was
pleased with the work in ensuring uniformity.

Kriz moved to recommend approval of the text amendment to the Lighting
Ordinance, specifically Sec. 731.2 of the Land Development Ordinance. Allen
seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

Consider a Text Amendment to the Parking Ordinance, specifically Sec. 909 -
Off-Street Automobile Parking Requirements

Ritenour read the protocol for conducting a public hearing.

Reed displayed the current code with the amendments indicated. At a previous
meeting, it was suggested allowing five regular parking spaces to be replaced with
five designated cart parking spaces. Reed said she needed to investigate the
average sizes of carts so she could better understand what requirements should be
imposed, and told the Commission that staff needed more time for research,
especially on the parking component. She noted that Peachtree City would be the
first city she knew of have cart parking regulations. Those regulations would have
to meet Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements in addition to things
like parallel parking standards.

She and Hooks had looked at the parking requirements for each use, she said, and
decided it would be necessary to talk with other cities that had altered their parking
requirements according to the business use.

Tonight, Reed wanted the Commission to understand staff was still reviewing the
parking ordinance but asked them for comments, suggestions or questions they
had. Ritenour confirmed with her that they could move ahead with the public
hearing. Typically, the Commission would make a recommendation of approval or
denial to the City Council. Reed said the public hearing could continue, and the
Commission could allow for further time. As long as the hearing was opened for
public comment, it was a valid public hearing regardless of whether there was a
recommendation to Council or not. There could be another public hearing, if the
Planning Commission desired, once the ordinance was complete, Reed noted.

Ritenour opened the public hearing, asking if anyone wished to speak in favor of
the amendments. Keith Larson, a long-time pedestrian and bicycle advocate,
stepped up. He recalled the Commission’s update of the 54 West overlay that



included updates for cart and bicycle parking. He said he would be glad to offer his
expertise at no charge to City staff. He noted that term “golf cart” only applied to
vehicles on a golf course. They should be called “motorized carts” or “personal
transport vehicle” in the ordinance.

Last year, with an eye towards the creation of a Unified Development Ordinance
(UDO), the Transportation Advisory Group (TAG), of which Larson was then a
member, worked out a cart parking scheme based on the size of current models.
TAG also developed an ADA-accessible parking space for carts, the first in the
nation. Larson again offered to share these materials with staff.

He said there were already several developments that had stipulated cart and bike
parking requirements, but they were not uniform, and Larson said he discovered
they were only about 10% in compliance. Larson mentioned that they needed to
consider both long-term bike parking, such as for residents and employees, and
short-term parking for customers and clients. Long-term bike parking needed to be
sheltered from the elements.

Larson again said he would be happy to provide information to staff because he
wanted Peachtree City to do better. Ritenour mentioned that they wanted to
incorporate these standards into the UDO and thanked Larson for his offer.
Peachtree City was moving into the redevelopment stage, Larson added, and there
needed to be language to trigger the new parking requirements for those legacy
projects, too.

Hamner said Larson had sent some materials in the past dealing with the UDO. He
read one that said cart parking spaces should measure no less than 6 feet by 10
feet. Larson also had shared some recommendations about the location of
charging stations.

No one else wished to speak either in favor or in opposition, and Ritenour closed
the public hearing. He asked if any Commissioners had questions either for staff or
for Larson.

Allen said they had come up with five as the number of cart spaces that could be
substituted for regular spaces. He thought it might be better to use a percentage,
saying the total number of spaces made a difference. Five cart spaces out of 5,000
would not be sufficient, but five out of a total of seven would be too much. He
thought required bike parking was a great idea and agreed with what Larson said.

Ritenour said these were the same issues that came up when they were reviewing
the 54 West Overlay. They investigated what type of bike racks would be the best
and also looked into storage, but never really added details. Allen mentioned the
large bike lockers used in Washington, D.C., and also in Europe.

Hamner acknowledged Larson’s expertise and asked him to consider their work
thus far and state the strengths and weaknesses that he had observed. Realizing



that they had a problem was the first thing they were doing right, Larson said. He
said the new types and proliferation of micromobility vehicles called for a
responsible community to provide ways to secure those rides at their destination.
He estimated that at least 10% of the trips in Peachtree City were made by

alternate means. With bike parking, both long-term and short-term parking had to
be addressed.

Ritenour asked staff if it would be okay to ask Larson to send them the information
he had shared with the Planning Commission, and Reed said that was fine. Maybe
it was time to change the terminology, he went on, and they should look at ADA
compliance. He asked Larson to send the information to them.

Hamner thanked Larson for offering his expertise.

Kriz said he agreed with Allen’s suggestion of using percentages, rather than a set
number. He asked staff if they could find the average number of spaces in
developments throughout the city, but Reed said that number was impossible to
determine because parking was based on uses, and the uses varied. There might
be commercial uses sharing space with offices in one development. To get around
the disparity in the number of spaces, Kriz suggested that they say something like
a minimum of five cart spaces and a maximum of 10%.

He asked if they wanted to separate the bicycle parking from the rest of the parking
ordinance, saying that the current ordinance did not require bicycle parking, but
only allowed it. Kriz believed the Commission supported an actual requirement.
Allen said he thought they had decided to separate it.

City Council had requested to keep bicycle parking in the ordinance, Reed stated.
Kriz said he would like to see language that required bicycle parking in any new
commercial development or redevelopment. Reed asked if bicycle parking would
be required, but golf cart parking would be optional? Kriz said that was correct. He
reasoned that the Commission would ask about cart parking if a plan came to them
without it, but he realized that not every development was well-connected to the
paths.

If they were bound to keep bike parking as part of this ordinance, Ritenour
remarked, they could expand section 909.8 to cover parking, storage, and
whatever other requirements they wanted or make 900.8 cover bike parking and
909.9, storage.

Allen said he thought bike parking should be required, but large storage should be
an option. He agreed that they didn’t have enough information to make other
recommendations.

A developer, Halverson remarked, could leverage this cart parking if he didn’t have
enough landscape coverage by reducing the size of the parking and swapping it



out for cart parking, then adding landscape back in. He thought they should provide
flexibility and think about other areas of the code. He was in favor of increasing the
percentage Allen suggested up to15% as long as they took advantage of it from a
landscape perspective.

Allen showed Larson a photo of the type of bike storage locker he had mentioned
earlier. Larson said those were becoming more common.

Larson also addressed the question of whether cart parking should be mandatory,
saying a few businesses were not connected to either a neighborhood street or a
shared-use path. They should consider an exception for those businesses. He also
told them the ratio was three cart spaces for two standard spaces.

Kriz said he would love to require cart parking, but he knew some developers did
not like it. However, Larson mentioned that some developers were looking for
micromobility connections.

Gant said he understood the discussion about cart parking but asked if there was

an issue they were trying to address with bike parking. Was there a demand for it?
Allen said there was a demand, plus, if bike parking were readily available, he felt

more people would ride bikes.

Ritenour noted that he was surprised when he joined the Planning Commission to
learn that there were no regulations regarding cart parking. They were trying to add
some recommendations while keeping the differences between developments in
mind. It was the same with bicycles. They were taking baby steps, and it was
important to have this discussion and put the details into it.

He asked Reed what she needed from them, acknowledging that this project had
gotten bigger than they intended. Reed said she needed to talk with the City
Manager and get his guidance on what direction they should go. Right now, she
needed time and proposed they bring this up again at the March 23 meeting.
Ritenour told her that was fine; he wanted this ordinance to be the best it could be.
Reed said she would reach out to TAG about the parking space sizes.

Halverson requested that Reed, during her research on cart parking regulations in
other cities, determine whether the allocation of cart spaces was mandated or
discretionary. She said she had discovered so far that most places did not specify
numbers of spaces. She said she would be okay with maximizing cart spaces at
10% or 15% percent, but they also needed to set a location for that parking. You
didn’t want all the spaces in a large development in front of one store.

Hooks asked if the percentage would be of the required number of spaces or what
the developer was providing? Kriz said it would be a percentage of the required
amount.



Kriz also said he would like for the City to approach existing properties after this
was adopted and ask if they would be willing to offer designated cart parking.

Gant moved to recommend they defer this until the March 23 meeting. Kriz
seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

Member/Staff Topics

Ritenour mentioned that Reed had sent an email regarding zoning classes. He
recommended the Zoning 101 class and said he hoped to take the 102 class. He urged
the other Commissioners to take advantage of this training.

There was nothing on the February 23 agenda, but the March 9 meeting would be
packed. The Commissioners discussed cancelling the February 23 meeting but decided
to use it to discuss the native plants ordinance. Hamner said he had compiled all of
their ideas with his take on the pros and cons, and he hoped they could discuss it and
find a way to move forward.

Halverson asked who answered the questions during the request for proposals (RFP)
process, and Reed said she did, adding that she and the procurement department were
trying to figure out the scoring component for the steering committee while respecting

the confidentiality of bidders.

Adjourn

There being no further business, Kriz moved to adjourn at 7:34 p.m. Halverson
seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

a/k N\ "—_\

Martha Barksdale, Recording Secretary Scott Ritenour, Chairman




